Public Document Pack

Havering

ALTBERTYR LONDON BOROUGH

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
(SEKER EXPRESS SUPERMARKET) - REVIEW

AGENDA
Thursday Council Chamber -
10.30 am 15 March 2012 Town Hall

Members 3: Quorum 2
COUNCILLORS:

Peter Gardner (Chairman)
Denis Breading
Linda Trew

For information about the meeting please contact:
Andrew Beesley 01708 432437
andrew.beesley@havering.gov.uk




Licensing Sub-Committee, 15 March 2012

AGENDA ITEMS

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

(if any) - receive

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members are invited to declare any interest in any of the item on the agenda at this
point of the meeting. Members may still declare an interest in an item at any time prior
to the consideration of the matter.

3 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

4  REPORT OF THE CLERK (Pages 1 - 6)
5  REPORT OF THE LICENSING OFFICER (Pages 7 - 48)

Application for a review of the premises licence for Seker Express Supermarket
Quality Food Centre, 57-65 London Road, Romford. RM7 9QA

lan Buckmaster
Committee Administration & Member Support
Manager



_ Agenda ltem 4
Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

LICENSING REPORT
SUB-COMMITTEE

15 March 2012

Subject Heading: Procedure for the Hearing: Licensing
Act 2003

Report Author and contact details: Andrew Beesley (01708) 432437
e-mail: andrew.beesley@havering.gov.uk

This is a hearing to consider an application for a review of a licence under section
51 of the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005
will govern the arrangements for the hearing of the application now under
consideration. This report accords with the requirements of that Act and the
Regulations, and in particular Regulations 21-25 (procedure at the hearing).

1. Membership of the Sub-Committee:

1.1 The Sub-Committee comprises three members of the Licensing Committee,
with a quorum of two members. Unless there are objections, in the
absence of three members, the hearing shall proceed with the quorum
of two.

1.2 A member of the Licensing Committee will be excluded from hearing an

application where he or she:

1.2.1 has considered an application in respect of the premises in the
previous 12 months as a Member of the Regulatory Services
Committee; or

1.2.2 is a Ward Councillor for the Ward in which the premises, subject to
the application, are located; or

1.2.3 is a Ward Councillor for a Ward which is likely to be affected by the
application or;

1.2.4 has a personal interest in the application.

2. Roles of other participants:

2.1 The Legal Advisor is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Legal Advisor
is to provide legal advice relating to the application and submissions.

Page 1



Licensing Sub Committee, 15 March 2012

2.2

The Clerk is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Clerk is to record the
hearing and the decisions of the Sub-Committee, and ensure efficient
administration

3. Representation validation meeting:

3.1

3.2

Prior to this hearing, the Sub-Committee Chairman will have met the Legal
Advisor and/or Clerk to determine whether further clarification is required of
any issues contained in the review application or any representation.

During this representation validation meeting, no decision will have been
made or discussion held regarding the substantive merits of the review
application or representations.

4. Location and facilities:

4.1

4.2

5.1

All hearings will be heard at the Havering Town Hall unless otherwise
directed.

Interpreters will be provided by the Council on request, provided notice is
given at least five working days before the hearing.

Notification of attendance:

The Chairman will enquire of the parties who is in attendance and the
parties will indicate their names (and, where relevant, whom they represent).
A register will be circulated before the commencement of the hearing on
which the applicant, his/her advisers and companions and all interested
parties (and/or their representatives) will be asked to record their
attendance.

6. Procedural matters:

6.1

6.2

Prior to the commencement of the hearing, the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee will orally inform the parties whether their applications to have
certain people attend the hearing (e.g. withesses) have been granted or
refused. Note this relates to people other than those attending on behalf of a
party in the capacity as a representative of the party.

Prior to the commencement of the hearing the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee will outline the procedure to be followed at the hearing. This will
normally be as follows:

Introduction of the application:

The party requesting the review will outline:

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee, 15 March 2012

details of the application and relevant representations received from the
parties;

relevant legislation ;

relevant Licensing Policy; and

the time limit in which the Council must reach a determination.

Documentary evidence:

Documentary or other information in support of applications,
representations or notices should be provided to the Clerk of the Sub-
Committee at least 7 clear working days before the hearing. If this
information is produced at the hearing it will only be taken into account
by the Sub-Committee if the Sub-Committee and all the parties consent
to its submission. Permission to have this information included in the
hearing should be requested at the beginning of the hearing before any
oral submissions have been made.

Statements made by people in support of a party’s representation who
are not present at the hearing, must be signed by the maker, dated and
witnessed by another person. The statement must also contain the
witness’s full name and occupation.

Representations:

The Chairman will invite each of the parties at the hearing or their
representative sequentially to address the Sub-Committee and call any
person/s to whom permission has been granted to appear. Each party
will be allowed a maximum period of 10 minutes in which to address the
Sub-Committee and call persons on his/her behalf.

This 10 minute period is where each party has the opportunity to orally
address the Sub-Committee and clarify any points on which the Sub-
Committee has sought clarification prior to the hearing. This 10 minute
period should be uninterrupted unless a member of the Sub-Committee
or Legal Advisor considers that the speaker is making submissions that
are irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious.

Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions of any party, at any
time during the proceedings. Time taken in dealing with a Member's
question will not be taken into account in determining the length of time
available to the party in question to make their representation.

The sequence in which each of the parties will be invited to address the
Sub-Committee will normally be in the order of:

the party requesting the review of the licence

the Chief Officer of Police;

the Fire Authority;

the Health and Safety at Work Enforcing Authority;

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee, 15 March 2012

the Local Planning Authority;

the Local Environmental Health Authority;

the Local Weights and Measures Authority;

the Authority Responsible for the Protection of Children from Harm,;

a navigation or other authority responsible for waterways; and

any other party that has submitted representations in respect of the
application, certificate, notice or other matter appearing before the
Sub-Committee;

e the party whose premises is the subject of the licence review.

At the discretion of the Sub-Committee the above order may be varied.
Cross-Examination:

Where witnesses have been permitted by the Sub-Committee to speak at
the hearing on behalf of a party, permission must be sought from the Sub-
Committee before another party can ask the witness questions. This
process of questioning is normally referred to as cross-examination. The
Sub-Committee will allow cross-examination only where it is necessary to
assist it in considering the representations or application.

Relevance:

Information submitted at the hearing must be relevant to the applications,
representations, or notice and the promotion of the licensing objectives. The
Chairman of the Sub-Committee is entitled to exclude any information it
considers to be irrelevant whether presented in written or oral form. The
licensing objectives are:

The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;

The prevention of public nuisance; and
The protection of children from harm.

7. Failure of parties to attend the hearing:

7.1

If a party, who has not given prior notice of his/her intention not to attend the
hearing, is absent from the hearing the Sub-Committee may either adjourn
the hearing or hold the hearing in the party’s absence. Where the hearing is
held in the absence of a party, the Sub-Committee will still consider the
application, representation or notice submitted by that party.

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee, 15 March 2012

8. Adjournments and extension of time:

8.1

The Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a specified date or extend a
notice period except where it must make a determination within certain time
limits in the following specific applications:

Applications for conversion of existing licences where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application
first being received. In default of a decision being made the application
will be treated as being granted;

Applications for variation of existing licences where the Sub-Committee
must make a determination within 2 months of the application first being
received. In default of a decision being made the application will be
treated as being rejected;

Applications for conversion of existing club certificates where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application
being first received. In default of a decision being made the application
will be treated as being granted;

Applications for variation of existing club certificates where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application
being first received. In default of a decision being made the application
will be treated as being rejected;

Applications made by holders of justices’ licences for personal licences
must be determined within 3 months of the application first being
received. In default of a decision not being made within this period the
application will be treated as being granted;

Review of premises licences following closure orders made under the
Licensing Act 2003 where the Sub-committee must make a
determination within 28 days of receiving notice of the closure order.

Other reviews of premises licenses where the Sub-Committee must
make a determination within 28 days of the end of the statutory
consultation period.

9. Sub-Committee’s determination of the hearing:

9.1

At the conclusion of the hearing the Sub-Committee will deliberate in private

accompanied by the Clerk and the Legal Advisor who will be available to
assist the Sub-Committee with any legal problems but will not participate in
any decision making of the Sub-Committee.

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee, 15 March 2012

9.2 The Sub-Committee will normally make its determination and announce its
decision at the end of the hearing.

9.3 Where all parties have notified the Sub-Committee that a hearing is not
required the Sub-Committee must make its determination within 10 working
days of being given notice that the hearing is not required.

10.Power to exclude people from hearing:

10.1 The public are entitled to attend the hearing as spectators. However, the
Sub-Committee may exclude any person from the hearing including any
person assisting or representing a party where:

e it considers that the public interest would be best served by excluding
the public or the individual person from the hearing; or

e that person is behaving in a disruptive manner. This may include a party
who is seeking to be heard at the hearing. In the case where a party is to
be excluded, the party may submit to the Sub-Committee in writing any
information which they would have been entitled to give orally had they
not been required to leave the hearing.

11.Recording of proceedings:

11.1 A written record of the hearing will be produced and kept for 6 years from
the date of the determination of the hearing.

12.Power to vary procedure:
12.1  The Sub-committee may depart from following any of the procedures set out

in this document if it considers the departure to be necessary in order to
consider an application, notice or representation.

Page 6



_ Agenda Item 5
Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

LICENSING REPORT
SUB-COMMITTEE

15 March 2012

Subject Heading: Review of premises licence for Seker
Express Supermarket Quality Food
Centre 57-65 London Road Romford RM7
9QA

Report Author and contact details: Paul Campbell — Licensing Officer

01708 432777
licensing@havering.gov.uk

This application for a review of the premises licence is made by Keith Bush
Divisional Trading Standards Officer under section 51 of the Licensing Act
2003. The application was received by Havering’s Licensing Authority on
25" January 2012.

Geographical description of the area and description of the building
The premises are a terrace double shop with the retail area on the ground floor and
either offices of residential property above.

The premises are located on the south side of London Road about 175 metres
west of Waterloo Road (the ring road) and 55 metres east of St Andrews Road.
Nearby properties are a mixture of commercial premises and residential properties
at the rear of the premises is a large residential area (St Andrews Road, Queen
Street estate)

The premises are within easy walking distance of Romford Town Centre.
A map of the area is attached to assist the committee.

Details of the application

The application for review has been brought by the London Borough of Havering
Trading Standards Service following alcohol being sold to under age volunteers on
two separate occasions within two months in 2011. The full details of these
incidents are included in the application.

History of the premises

The premises at number 65 London Road had a Justices Licence for the sale of
alcohol for off sales and was grandfathered to the Licensing Act 2003.

The premises at 57 to 63 was a furniture shop.

Page 7



Licensing Sub-Committee, 15 March 2012

On 6" October 2009 an application was made for a premises licence at 57 to 65.
On 23™ November 2009 the Licensing Sub-Committee granted a licence with
conditions (a copy of that decision notice is attached) alterations to the shop (57 to
65) were made to make it into a convenience store.

In June 2010 a licensing officer incorrectly varied the licence relating to 65 London
Road to incorporate the whole of the premises 57 to 65 instead of producing a new
licence.

In October 2011 | was made aware of this mistake.

| inspected the premises on 11" October 2011 and found there to be a number of
conditions that were in the decision notice not being met. | pointed out the error in
the licence and gave them a copy of the decision notice and a copy of what would
be the licence when all of the conditions were met. (not the signed original)

In November 2011 | attended the shop and was told that the till prompt tills were
being installed soon.

The test purchases took place at the end of 2011.

On 15" February 2012 the licensing authority received a change of DPS
application to change from Mr Hasan Seker to Mr Haydar Has

On 22 February 2012 | inspected the premises there were two members of staff
present (one male one female) | later established that neither of these people hold
a Personal Licence under the Licensing Act 2003. | introduced myself but | could
not make myself understood, | asked for the documentation required under the
decision notice and licence | was given various documents including the justices
licence a food registration document and the licence for 65 London Road and was
frequently told that the owner was at the cash and carry.

| was given a mobile phone and spoke to an agent from NARTS who translated for
us.

After about 40 minutes other staff arrived and | was furnished with training records
in a stapled together pack, which under the heading “Training Performed” it had the
persons name not what training they had performed. There were only 5 lines
completed on the form.

CD1 | questioned the point that all staff should be trained for their job and asked as
the staff could not understand me how do they communicate with customers
relating to age related products. No explanation was given.

CDGPG12 a refusal book was eventually produced it had the date 31/8/11 on the
front cover it was a hard back book, and entries were numbered by the person
making it entry 1, 2, 3, 10, 11, 19, 20 & 25 (the last entry) had no dates to them,
there was no set format relating to each entry the page following entry 25 had been
ripped out of the book. The explanation given was that the till now records refused
sales and the page was probably used for notes/scrap.

Point 2 neither of the two staff who were present when | first attended the shop are
holders of a personal licence. No explanation was given to me as to why this had
happened

Point 3 there are two tills at the counter one has no till prompt the other operates
when a age restricted product is scanned it prompts on the screen (in English) “is
the customer over 18 YES — NO” if yes is touched the sale continues if no is
touched nothing further happens. Apparently age restricted products are put
through this till and the till records all of these transactions.

Point 4 a full licence has never been issued to the premises because of the
mistake detailed above.

Page 8



Licensing Sub-Committee, 15 March 2012

Comments and observations on the application

The application to review notice was placed with the licence holder’s permission on
the window of the premises it was also placed on the public notice board at the
Town Hall and in the Havering web site.

Summary
There were no valid representations against or in suport of this application from

interested parties.

There was one representation in support of this application from responsible
authorities.

Details of representations
Valid representations may only address the following licensing objectives:

The prevention of crime and disorder
The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm
Public safety

There were no representations from the following responsible authorities:

Public Health

The London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority
The Health & Safety Enforcing Authority

The Trading Standards Service

Planning Control & Enforcement

Children & Families Service

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Licensing Act 2003
Notice of Decision

PREMISES

Star Off Licence

57-65 London Road

Romford

RM7 9QA

DETAILS OF APPLICATION

Application for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).

APPLICANT

Mr Hasan Seker and Mr Seker Huseyin
17 Windsor Court 80 Larkswood
312 Forest Road London
Walthamstow E4 9DY

London

E17 5JJ

1. Details of application

Supply of Alcohol

Day Start Finish
Monday to Sunday 00:00 hours 24:00 hours

At the Sub-Committee hearing the applicants indicated that for the purposes of this
hearing only they were prepared to agree to the following reduced hours:

Day Start Finish

Monday to Wednesday 07:00 hours 00:30 hours
Thursday to Saturday 07:00 hours 02:30 hours
Sunday 07:00 hours 23:00 hours

Page 11



The Applicants also confirmed that the premises would only operate during the
licensable hours granted.

2. Details of Variation

There has been no application for either seasonal variation or non-standard timings

3. Promotion of the Licensing Objectives

The applicants have completed the operating schedule, which forms part of his application,
that they will take the steps set down to promote the four licensing objectives:

General (all four licensing objectives)

CCTV to be maintained, recordings kept for a period to be agreed with the police and offered
for inspection if required by a Police officer or authorised officer of the Council. Staff will be
given initial training to ensure they are aware of their responsibilities under the Licensing Act.
The applicants indicated that they were experienced retailers. They had the benefit of a
premises licence for off sales in respect of 65 London Road but would surrender this at the
point that a new licence was issued.

The Prevention of Crime & Disorder

The Applicants indicated that there would be CCTV coverage inside the premises in
accordance with advice from the Police.

There would be signs on display informing the public passing the premises that recorded
CCTV was in use at the premises.

Any recording would be kept a minimum of 31 days and would be made available to the
Council or the Police.

A general alarm system would also be installed.

Public Safety

The Applicants had agreed to comply with the fire regulations and the provisions of the
management regulations.

The Applicants would also maintain and check systems in place, smoke detectors, fire
extinguishers, emergency safety lighting and fire alarms.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

The applicants had confirmed that they would discourage noise from patrons arriving at
queuing or departing from the premises by displaying polite notices for customers’ attention.

Page 12



The protection of children from harm

The applicants had confirmed that to prevent the purchase of alcohol by minors staff would
request proof of age identification such as UK drivers licence or passport.

Refused sales would be entered into a refusal book with details for record.

Relevant literature displayed for customers’ attention.

4, Details of Representations

Representations Objecting to the Application from “Interested Parties”

Four valid written representations were received from the following members of the public:

Mrs J Gowers 48A London Road Romford Essex RM7 9QX
Mr C Lau 51-55 London Road Romford Essex RM7 9QA

Mrs S Mansfield 47 London Road Romford Essex RM7 9QA
Mr W Sampson 47 London Road Romford Essex RM7 9QA

Each of the written representations based their objections upon one or more of the four

licensing objectives. All four attended the hearing to make representations in support of their
objections.

Responsible Authorities

Chief Officer of Metropolitan Police (“the Police”):

The Police made representations against the application stating that they considered the
applicants had not satisfactorily addressed the four Licensing objectives.

It was stated that whilst an effort had been made, the applicants had not satisfactorily
addressed the steps they intended to take to promote the four licensing objectives.

Virtually every proposal made by the applicants to promote these objectives required further
clarification. For example, undertakings given relating to CCTV systems could be meaningless
if they were not applied to guidelines that were capable of withstanding scrutiny. This
requirement was absolutely necessary where a premises was seeking to operate for twenty -
four hours a day.

Most of the Borough's ward Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNT) were currently tasked to deal
with anti-social behaviour and disorder issues caused by youths who had obtained access to
alcohol.

This was the case with Brooklands Ward SNT who had to respond to associated alcohol-
related problems in Cottons Park which was situated directly opposite the premises.

The Police accepted that no current alcohol related disorder was attributable to this particular
premises.

Page 13



However, it was by raising these concerns and encouraging the applicants to adopt as good
service the guidelines as set out in the Havering “pool of conditions” that would go some way
to ensuring that they do not materialize in the future.

London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority (“LFEPA”): None.

Health & Safety Enforcing Authority: None.

Planning Control & Enforcement: None

Public Health: None

Children & Families Service: None

Trading Standards Service: None

The Magistrates Court: None

5. Determination

Consequent upon the hearing held on 23 November 2009, the Sub-Committee’s decision
regarding the application for a Premises Licence for Star Off Licence 57-65 London
Road Romford was as set out below, for the reasons shown:

The Sub-Committee was obliged to determine this application with a view to promoting the
licensing objectives, which are:

. The prevention of crime and disorder
. Public safety

. The prevention of public nuisance

. The protection of children from harm

In making its decision, the Sub-Committee also had regard to the Guidance issued under
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Havering’s Licensing Policy.

In addition, the Sub-Committee took account of its obligations under s17 of the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998, and Articles 1 and 8 of the First Protocol of the Human Rights Act 1998.

Issues

Issue 1 Whether the granting of the premise licence would undermine the
prevention of the public nuisance objective.

Issue 1 Public Nuisance

The Sub-Committee noted the representations from members of the
public outlining the risk of public nuisance at the premises. The Sub-

Page 14



Issue 2

Issue 2

Issue 3

Issue 3

Issue 4

Issue 4

Committee also noted the Police’s concerns regarding those debarred
from legitimately acquiring alcohol e.g. young persons under the age
of 18 approaching adults to purchase alcohol on their behalf

The applicant agreed to provide regular training for all staff who
worked on the premises to ensure that the licensing objectives were
met and adhered to.

Whether the granting of the premises licence would undermine the
public safety objective.

Public Safety

The Sub-Committee noted the representations from the Metropolitan
Police who were concerned that an adequate CCTV system needed to
be installed at the premises.

The Applicants indicated that they would install a suitable CCTV
system, that would also include recording outside of the shop, and
would have a 31 day recording capability.

The Sub-Committee also considered the representations made by
members of the public.

Whether the granting of the premises licence would undermine the
crime and disorder objective.

Crime and Disorder

The Sub-Committee noted the representations from the Metropolitan
Police and representations from members of the public who were
concerned that the premises was situated in a parade of shops that
were situated opposite Cottons Park which already suffered from
problems with Anti-Social behaviour.

Whether the granting of the premises licence would undermine the
protection of children from harm objective.

Protection of Children From Harm

The Sub-Committee considered the discussion around ensuring that
under-age purchasing of alcohol did not take place and noted that all
operators and staff have both a duty and responsibility to ensure that
only those who are of age are provided with intoxicants. It was
suggested that this include the provision of clear notices around the
store reiterating the seriousness of under-age drinking and the

Page 15



relevant offences involved.

The Applicants indicated that they were happy to keep a refusals
register on the premises that could be inspected at any time by the
responsible authorities.

The Applicants indicated their intention to purchase an EPOS till which
generated prompts for sales of age restricted products.

The Applicants confirmed that all persons or persons that appeared to
be under the age of 25 would be asked for photographic identification
by means of a passport or photo driving licence. Also to be aware that
adults may on occasions purchase alcohol on behalf of persons under
the legal age.

6. Decision

Having considered the oral and written submissions on behalf of the Applicants’ legal
representative, objectors, Police and the licensing officer, the Sub-Committee granted the
application in part (as set out below).

Supply of Alcohol (off sales only)

Day Start Finish

Monday to Wednesday 07:00 hours 24:00 hours
Thursday to Saturday 07:00 hours 01:00 hours
Sunday 07:00 hours 23:00 hours

Conditions on the Premises License:

a. CCTV

All CCTV to be approved by Havering Police and is to be fit for purpose with recoverable
images.

CD15 - A properly specified and fully operational CCTV system shall be installed or the
existing system maintained to a satisfactory standard. The system will incorporate a camera
covering each of the entrance doors and be capable of providing an image which is regarded
as ‘identification standard’ of all persons entering and/or leaving the premises. All other areas
of risk identified in the Operational Requirements shall have coverage appropriate to the risk.

Page 16



CD16 - The installation or upgrading of any CCTV system shall comply with current best
practice. In addition the documentation listed below shall be included in a ‘System File’ which
should be readily available for inspection by the relevant authority;

» Site plan showing position of cameras and their field of view.

e Code of Practice.

e Performance specification e.g. storage capacity, image file size, IPS for each camera

and purpose of each camera position

¢ Operational requirement.

e Incident log.
Maintenance records including weekly visual checks.

CD17 - To obtain a clear head and shoulders image of every person entering the premises on
the CCTV system, persons entering the premises should be asked to remove headwear,
unless worn as part of religious observance.

CD18 - The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and all recordings shall be
securely stored for a minimum of one calendar month. A system shall be in place to maintain
the quality of the recorded image and a complete audit trail maintained. The system will
comply with other essential legislation, and all signs as required will be clearly displayed. The
system will be maintained and fully operational throughout the hours that the premises are
open for any licensable activity. For premises using a video recording system, the cassette
tapes shall be used on no more than 12 occasions to maintain the quality of the recorded
image.

CD19 - The positions of all CCTV cameras shall be clearly shown on a set of plans which
should form part of the ‘System File’. Any alteration to the system should only be carried out
after consultation with and written approval of Havering Police and the Licensing Authority.

6b. Training

CD1 - All staff shall be suitably trained for their job function for the premise. The training shall
be written into a programme, ongoing and under constant review, and must be available to a
relevant Responsible Authority when called upon.

6c. Proof of Age

The premises is to adopt the challenge 25 policy.

CDGPGS - Prominent clear notices shall be displayed at the point of entry to the premises and
in a suitable location at any points of sale, advising customers that they may be asked to
produce evidence of their age.

CDGPG11 - All members of staff at the premises shall seek “credible photographic proof of
age evidence” from any person who appears to be under the age of 18 years and who is
seeking to purchase alcohol. Such credible evidence, which shall include a photograph of the
customer, will include a passport or a photographic driving licence.

Page 17



CDGPG12 - All occasions when persons have been refused service shall be recorded in
writing in a refusal book, which must be a hard bound book with no loose pages, to be kept on
the premises at all times and available for inspection by responsible authorities for six months.

CDGPG13 - Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at the premises about the supply of
alcohol to minors and the relevant offences involved.

In addition the Sub-Committee also imposed the following the conditions on the premises
licence.

1. A personal license holder will be on the premises at all times when alcohol is being
supplied.

2. The Applicant use an EPOS till with appropriate prompts for sales of age restricted
products
3. No more than 25% of the retail area of the premises be used to display alcohol.

4. The licence to be effective from the date that the Licensing Authority provide written
confirmation that all conditions set out above have been implemented satisfactorily.

Reason for Decision

The Sub-Committee made its decision giving weight to the representations made by the
Police and the public.

The Sub-Committee advised that in making its decision consideration was given to the fact
that the area was of mixed tenure, part residential and part business and with several
churches.

The Sub-Committee also believed that granting longer licensable hours would be
detrimental to sleep patterns of young and vulnerable people.

Opposite the premises was Cottons Park which had been the subject of large investment by
the Council over recent years. There had already been reported incidents of Anti-Social
behaviour and the Sub-Committee felt that by offering increased alcohol sales in close
proximity to the park could well exacerbate these incidents.

The Sub-Committee advised that all the conditions mentioned previously would need to be
in place and operational before the new licence was issued. In accordance with the
applicants’ reassurance they would then surrender the existing licence at 65 London Road
before the new licence was issued.

For the present time the Star Off Licence would continue to operate under the present
“‘grandfathered” rights licence at 65 London Road.

Page 18



7.

Right of Appeal

Any party to the decision or anyone who has made a relevant representation [including a
responsible authority or interested party] in relation to the application may appeal to the
Magistrates Court within 21 days of notification of the decision. On appeal, the Magistrates’

Court may:

1. dismiss the appeal; or

2. substitute the decision for another decision which could have been made by the Sub
Committee; or

n remit the case to the Sub Committee to dispose of it in accordance with the direction of
the Court; and

4, make an order for costs as it sees fit.

Richard Cursons
Clerk to the Licensing Sub-Committee

Page 19



Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Premises licence number | 008038 ]

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Seker Express Supermarket Quality Food Centre
57-65 London Road, Romford, RM7 9QA

Where the licence is time limited the dates
N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Monday to Wednesday — 07:00 to 00:00
Thursday to Saturday — 07:00 to 01:00
Sunday - 07:00 to 23:00

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday — 00:00 to 24:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies

Off Supplies Only
_— — ——— 1
Part 2

10f5

Lo gL T T I —m—
Paul Campbell, Licensing Officer

Page 20



%___—__—_
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Mr Hasan Seker
17 Windsor Court, 312 Forest Road, London, E17 5JJ
079303119267
&
Mr Seker Huseyin
80 Larkswood, London, E4 9DU
07886351998

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

N/A

s> "> - —. -~
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises for the supply of alcohol

Haydar Has
29 Saxon Close, Dickenson Road, london N8 9EQ

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

London Borough of Hackney — LBH-PER-T-0637

“
Mandatory Conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence;
(a) at a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the
Premises Licence, or
(b) at a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a
Personal Licence or his Personal Licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a Personal Licence.

3. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure
that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

es———  —  ——— —— — — ——— ——— — ——  —  —— ——— |

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

Staff are to be trained regularly on licensing provisions and this training is to be
documented.

CCTV coverage inside the premises in accordance to the advice from the police.

Signs to be displayed informing the public passing the premises that recorded
CCTV is in use at the premises.

Any recordings to be kept for a minimum of 31 days and to be made available to
council and police
20f5
Page 21



The premises are to be alarmed.

Maintain and check systems in place, smoke detectors, fire extinguishers,
emergency safety lighting, fire alarms etc.

Discourage noise from patrons arriving, queuing or departing from the premises by
displaying polite notices for customers attention.

To prevent purchase of alcohol by minors, staff will request proof of age
identification such as UK drivers licence or passport.

Refused sales will be entered into the refusal book with details for record.

Relevant literature to be displayed for customers attention.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority
Hearing held on23/11/2009

CCTV
All CCTV to be approved by Havering Police and is to be fit for purpose with
recoverable images.

CD15 - A properly specified and fully operational CCTV system shall be installed or
the

existing system maintained to a satisfactory standard. The system will incorporate a
camera covering each of the entrance doors and be capable of providing an image
which is regarded as ‘identification standard’ of all persons entering and/or leaving
the premises. All other areas of risk identified in the Operational Requirements shall
have coverage appropriate to the risk.

CD16 - The installation or upgrading of any CCTV system shall comply with current
best practice. In addition the documentation listed below shall be included in a
‘System File’ which should be readily available for inspection by the relevant
authority;

e Site plan showing position of cameras and their field of view.

e Code of Practice.

» Performance specification e.g. storage capacity, image file size, IPS for each

camera and purpose of each camera position

¢ Operational requirement.

¢ Incident log.
Maintenance records including weekly visual checks.

CD17 - To obtain a clear head and shoulders image of every person entering the
premises on the CCTV system, persons entering the premises should be asked to
remove headwear, unless worn as part of religious observance.

3of5

SIgNed s sr st ittt nfamsmenn
Paul Campbell, Licensing Officer

Page 22



CD18 — The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and all recordings
shall be securely stored for a minimum of one calendar month. A system shall be in
place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a complete audit trail
maintained. The system will comply with other essential legislation, and all signs as
required will be clearly displayed. The system will be maintained and fully
operational throughout the hours that the premises are open for any licensable
activity. For premises using a video recording system, the cassette tapes shall be
used on no more than 12 occasions to maintain the quality of the recorded image.

CD19 — The positions of all CCTV cameras shall be clearly shown on a set of plans
which should form part of the ‘System File’. Any alteration to the system should
only be carried out after consultation with and written approval of Havering Police
and the Licensing Authority.

6b. Training

CD1 - All staff shall be suitably trained for their job function for the premise. The
training shall be written into a programme, ongoing and under constant review, and
must be available to a relevant Responsible Authority when called upon.

6c. Proof of Age
The premises is to adopt the challenge 25 policy.

CDGPG3 - Prominent clear notices shall be displayed at the point of entry to the
premises and in a suitable location at any points of sale, advising customers that
they may be asked to produce evidence of their age.

CDGPG11 - All members of staff at the premises shall seek “credible photographic
proof of age evidence” from any person who appears to be under the age of 18
years and who is seeking to purchase alcohol. Such credible evidence, which shall
include a photograph of the customer, will include a passport or a photographic
driving licence.

CDGPG12 - All occasions when persons have been refused service shall be
recorded in writing in a refusal book, which must be a hard bound book with no
loose pages, to be kept on the premises at all times and available for inspection by
responsible authorities for six months.

CDGPG13 - Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at the premises about the
supply of alcohol to minors and the relevant offences involved.

In addition the Sub-Committee also imposed the following the conditions on the
premises licence.

2. A personal license holder will be on the premises at all times when alcohol is
being supplied.

3. The Applicant use an EPOS till with appropriate prompts for sales of age
restricted products

4. No more than 25% of the retail area of the premises be used to display alcohol.
4. The licence to be effective from the date that the Licensing Authority provide

written confirmation that all conditions set out above have been implemented
satisfactorily.

e ——————__——————— ————— — ———————— ———
4 of 5

Page 23



Annex 4 - Plans

Full plans held by the London Borough of Havering Licensing section
Plans shown not to scale

] 0 - [ - ll:
" —f H
E 1= a ! ] -

FUET O S S N || B e

] _ ke o] AR AN RS

il O U O - L b STV LIGHTRS

it 4 ommeem—.
{ 1 (] ] S3 LT WATERERE 3
R T eaa® ﬂ L
2 .o [ 1 N S

50f5

OIINOA cicciisisissiiinming sorsinsmmnsmsmsrasmsssmasens
Paul Campbell, Licensing Officer

Page 24



Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Part B

Premises licence summary i

Premises licence number 008038

Premises details

Postal address of premises, if any, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Seker Express Supermarket Quality Food Centre
57-65 London Road, Romford, RM7 9QA

Where the licence is time limited the dates

N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Monday to Wednesday — 07:00 to 00:00
Thursday to Saturday — 07:00 to 01:00
Sunday - 07:00 to 23:00

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday — 00:00 to 24:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

Off Supplies Only

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence

Mr Hasan Seker
17 Windsor Court, 312 Forest Road, London, E17 5JJ
079303119267
&
Mr Seker Huseyin
80 Larkswood, London, E4 9DU
07886351998

10f2

Paul Campbell, Licensing Officer

Page 25



h
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

N/A

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of
alcohol

Mr Hasan Seker

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

N/A

ﬁﬁ
20f2

Page 26



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 1 - Copy of the Application

Page 27



/1 305 .

Application for the review of a premises licence or club
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all

cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use

additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name of applicant)
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the
review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003
for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 - Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Seker Express Supermarket Quality Food Centre
57-85 London Road

Post town Romford Post code (if known) RM7 9QA

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if
known)
Mr Hasan Seker and Mr Huseyin Seker

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known
008038

Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
Please tick yes

1) aninterested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

O

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

X 0O 00

2) aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below)

Page 28




3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) [
below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick
M 0 Mrs [ Miss [ Ms [ Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
| am 18 years old or over O

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Pagt 29




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Keith Bush, Divisional Trading Standards Manager
London Borough of Havering

Trading Standards Service

5" Floor, Mercury House

Mercury Gardens

Romford

Essex

RM1 3SL

Telephone number (if any)
01708 433425

E-mail address (optional)
keith.bush@havering.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder

2) public safety ]
3) the prevention of public nuisance |
4) the protection of children from harm X

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)
The London Borough of Havering Trading Standards Service is commited to
preventing underage sales of alcohol within the Borough.

Seker Express Supermarket Quality Food Centre in London Road, Romford has sold
alcohol to underage volunteers on two seperate occasions within two months, the
latest sale occurring on 17" December 2011.

We believe that two failures within such a short period of time demonstrates that the
premises has failed in its duty to protect children from harm.

Page 30



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

Seker Express Supermarket Quality Food Centre is an off licence/grocers at 57-65
London Road, Romford. The premise licence holder and designated premises
supervisor (DPS) is a Mr Hasan Seker.

On 26" October 2011 at approximately 3:20pm two volunteers entered the premises,
afifteen and a sixteen year old male. The volunteers were sold four cans of
Carisberg Export lager (5%vol). The sale was made by a Mehmet SEKER. Mr
SEKER did not challenge the volunteers as to their age or request any ID. Mr SEKER
was not a personal licence holder and was issued with a fixed penalty notice for the
offence.

The DPS was present at the time of the sale but failed to intervene to prevent the
sale. The seller said he had not been trained by the DPS and no refusal log could be
produced. The signage in the shop showed challenge 21 and chalienge 25 posters
giving an unclear and inconsistent message to staff and customers.

On 17" December 2011 the premises was revisited at approximately 3:40pm with
two female volunteers, one aged 15 and one aged 16. On this occasion the
volunteers were sold two 75¢| bottles of wine, Blossom Hills and Echo's Falls both
with an alcohol content of 12.5%. The sale was made by a Mrs Reyhan SEKER. Mrs
SEKER did not challenge the volunteers as to their age or request any identification.

The DPS was present at the time of the sale and was actually behind the counter but
failed to intervene to prevent the sale. Mrs SEKER was not a personal licence holder
and was issued with a fixed penalty notice for the offence.

The staff at the venue were unable to locate a refusal register and Mrs SEKER
seemed unsure whether the venue was operating a challenge 21 or challenge 25

policy.

On 12" January 2012 | visited the premises with my colleague Diana Diaz to conduct
a spot check of the systems in operation to establish whether a review of licence was
necessary. The following observations were made:

Neither of the persons who made the underage sales were a personal licence holder
and neither member of staff had been trained. Apparantly both individuals that sold
were just helping out and didn't work at the premises. There were no training records
being kept on site.

2 tills were found to be in operation at the premises. Only one had a till prompt on it. |
consider the till prompt that was present to be inadequate in that it flashed up on the
screen for a few seconds and just disappeared. By not requiring any action by the
staff to overide the till prompt it would be very easy to miss and not stop the
transaction occurring.

4 alcoholic drinks were checked to see the till prompt. 2 of the items scanned, a
bottle of gin and a bottle of champagne did not cause the till prompt to activate. It
was claimed that the move to larger premises means that some items have yet to be
added.

A refusal log was present at the time of my visit. There were only two entries since
August 2011, neither of which had a date recorded against them. | am concerned

that the premises has only refused two sales within a five month period. This would
indicate that either checks are not being conducted or the refusal register is not being |

Page 31



maintained.

The signage at the store did imply that both a challenge 21 and challenge 25 scheme
was in operation. The venue confirmed that they were actually operating a challenge
25 scheme and removed the incorrect challenge 21 poster during the visit.

Two sales within a 3 month period is considered to be persistently selling alcohol
under the Licensing Act 2003. The Act does give provision for the trading standards
service to offer a 48 hour closure notice in lieu of prosecution. However in this
instance | am concerned that not only have sales occurred but also the underlying
systems, procedures and management controls are insufficient at the venue.

The trader has only had its current licence since October 2011. This licence contains
a number of conditions to prevent underage sales of alcohol, very few of which were
in evidence when the two underage sales of alcohol were made. On neither occasion
were even the most basic precautions taken by the staff at the venue ie asking the
volunteers for [D. It is also of concern that a responsible person, namely the DPS,
has been present on both occasions when the sales have taken place yet their
presence has failed to prevent the sales occurring.

The venue has a condition on it's licence requiring them to operate a challenge 25
policy. This has clearly not been adopted and is certainly not being actively operated.

The venue also has a condition on their licence requiring them to maintain a refusal
register at the premises. On neither occasion following the test purchases could any
of the staff (including the DPS) locate any such register. The document that was
finally produced on 12" January 2012 was clearly not being used sufficiently.

The venue has a condition on their licence requiring them that all staff shall be
suitably trained for their job function for the premises and that this training shall be
written and ongoing and available to a responsible authority when called upon. Both
members of staff stated they were not trained following the test purchase failures.
Certainly no written training records were produced.

This Service has concerns that Mr Seker is not complying with his curernt
condiditons of licence and has failed to make the necessary improvements at his
venue following either sale. He was personally present during both sales yet failed to
prevent either. We question whether Mr Seker is suitably competent to remain as
DPS at the venue.

The venue is within close vacinity of Cotton's park, an area where young persons
gather and it is therefore very important that this venue is complying with their
obligations in relation to underage sales.

We believe that a suspension of licence would be appropriate to give the
management at the venue time to remedy the systems and controls that have been
found to be lacking and that especially the issues of training and fixing the till prompt
system is likely to take longer than 48 hours to resolve. We would welcome any
additional conditions that the panel would feel appropriate to prevent further
underage sales at the venue,

Our major concern remains that the venue has failed to adhere to a number of it's
current licence conditions and the committee will need to be satisfy itself that any
additional controls will be implemented and actively acted upon.

Page 82




Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before  []

f " .
If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year

LIT T[]

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state
w/hat they were and when you made them
N/A

Page 33



Please tick yes
= | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible X
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate
= | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements O
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicltor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity.

Signature

..........................................................................................................

.................................................................................

.............................................................................................................

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
malil address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems
which are included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.

N A

o Mo

Page B34




LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING

Statement of witness
(CJ Act 1967, s9: MC Act 1980, ss5A(3)(a) and 5B, MC Rules 1981, r70)

Statement of : Mark Lancod
Age of Witness (if over 18 enter “over 18”) : Over 18

Occupation of Witness : Fair Trading Officer

This statement, consisting of 1 page(s) each signed by me, is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be
liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything which | know to be false or do
not believe to be true.

Dated the 5th day of January 2012
Signed

My name is Mark Lancod and | am a Fair Trading Officer with the London
Borough of Havering where | have worked for approximately five years. On 26"
October 2011 | took part in a test purchasing exercise of alcohol and fireworks.
Also present were PC Dave Leonard, Senior Trading Standards Officer Diana
Diaz, Trading Standards Officer Katalin Morath and our volunteers. The two
volunteers assisting on the day were Charlie Wallace aged 16 DOB 19/9/95 and
Caleb Williams aged 15 DOB 31/05/96. Before going out the volunteers were
photographed, weighed and measured. We visited eight premises in total on the
day, with one making a sale. One of the premises we visited on the day was
SEKER SUPERMARKET 57-65 LONDON ROAD ROMFORD RM7 9QA. |
entered the premises before our volunteers at approximately 3:20pm. The
volunteers entered shortly afterwards and were sold a 4x500mls cans of
Carlsberg Export (5% VOL) by a young male wearing a grey sweater who did not
ask for their ages. The time of sale was 3:30pm. The volunteers left the
premises and | followed shortly afterwards. | returned to the store shortly after the
sale with Dave Leonard and Katalin Morath. The seller was identified as Mehmet
Seker DOB 26/03/93 Of 60 Hatch Lane Chingford London E4 6LQ. He initially
said he did not work at the store but when he was told he was seen selling he
said he was helping out. He said he did not remember making the sale initially so
we watched the sale back on the CCTV. He said he was not a personal licence
holder. The seller told us that before making the sale he had asked his uncle
Husseyn Seker DOB 08/06/1968 if it was OK to serve the volunteers and he had
said yes. Mr Husseyn Seker claimed he did not see the volunteers. The seller
said he had not had formal training but was told to check that people were not
under 18. In the store behind the till were Challenge 21 and Challenge 25 posters
which | took pictures of and exhibit as MAL/1 and MAL/2. There was no refusals
log produced when requested. The DPS of the store was present at the time of
sale and known as Hasan Seker DOB 05/06/1971 of 17 Windsor Court, 312
Forest Road Walthamstow E17 5JJ. Also present at the store was another man
who identified himself as a manager. Dave Leonard issued the seller a FPN. The
alcohol was sealed in bag numbered N00040857 at 4:05PM and which |
as MAL/3. We then left the store. :

Signed ;. 47 aiteinssssssonssannsnssssnss

Page 35




LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING
TRADING STANDARDS SERVICE

TIDENTIFY THE EXHIBIT DESCRIBED BELOW AS
THAT REFERRED TO IN THE S¥ATEMENT MADE
AND SIGNED BY ME

SIGNED: ...
EXHIBITNO: ) 'R'L: )

wmecassor Selee
DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBIT: P‘MXD_C}F

o N

OFFICER TAKING POSSESSION OF ITEM

SIGNED:......ccoviiiiviiinnnns DATE:........coovviviinnen
SIGNED:.....ccoiviiviniineans DATE:....c..ccivivviinninn
SIGNED: iviuivivs vy DATE

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING
TRADING STANDARDS SERVICE

I IDENTIFY THE EXHIBIT DESCRIBED BELOW AS
THAT REFERRED TO IN THE STATEMENT MADE
AND SIGNED BY ME

SIGNED: JJZA K .......... DATB:..ST.J../&I...
EXHIBIT NO; N\N—Z 2

N THE CASE OF: el

.
DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBIL-_QMM%

OFFICER TAKING POSSESSION OF ITEM

SIGNED =< smres s DATE:............ oousiwin
SIGNED:.....cccovureemrininnans DATE
SIGNED:.....ccociveiinenaninncen DATE:...........ccomsnusmons

Page 36




Tl W T N G g R ' 11
2 “H -




LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING
Statement of witness

(Criminal Procedure Rules r27.1(1); Criminal Justice Act 1967 s9,
Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980 s5B)

Statement of : Sasha Taylor
Age of Witness (if over 18 enter “over 18”) : Over 18
Occupation of Witness : Senior Fair Trading Officer

This statement, consisting of 3 page(s) each signed by me, is true to the best
of my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in
evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything
which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 5" January day of 2012

| am Sasha Taylor Senior Fair Trading Officer for the London Borough of Havering
where | have worked for approximately 19 years. On 17" December 2011, this
service carried out an underage test purchasing exercise. Also present was
Trading Standards Officer Katalin Morath, Trading Standards Officer Mark Rice
and two female volunteers who were aged 15 and 16. Before we left the office |
took photos of the volunteers on there own and with Mark Rice | produce the
photos as exhibits ST1- 4. | then weighed and measured the volunteers. One of
the off licences we visited was Seker 57-63 London Road Romford. | entered the
shop first, shortly followed by the volunteers. At approximately 15:40pm |
witnessed the sale of alcohol to our two volunteers . They were sold two bottles of
white wine namely Echo Falls 75c¢l 12.5% volume and Blossom Hill 12% volume
75cl. Also present behind the counter at the time of the sale were two other
males. | now know them to be the Designated Premise Supervisor Mr Hasan
Seker 17 Windsor Court 312 Forest Road London Road E17 5JJ and the hephew
of the owner Mr Mehmet Akarso 18.06.1988 10 Poppy Drive‘JEnﬁeld EN3 4FE.




‘ STATEMENT OF : PAGE 2

they handed the alcohol to Katalin Morath. The volunteers then went and sat in
the car with Mark whilst Katalin and | went back to speak to the staff. When we
arrived back in the shop the seller was not behind the counter. | introduced
ourselves, showed my credentials and asked the male behind the counter where
the female had gone, he said she had just finished her shift and left the shop with
her Husband. | asked him to call her to instruct her to come back to the shop.
She arrived shortly after with her Husband and young son. We went out the back
of the shop to discuss the sale, her Husband, son and Memet was also present. |
explained to her what had happened and she apologised. | cautioned her at
156:55pm. The seller gave her details as Mrs Reyhan Seker 80 Larkswood Road
London E4 9DU. Mrs Seker is the wife of the owner. She works in the shop 7
days a week. She did not know where the refusal book was kept and was not sure
whether the shop implemented challenge 21 or 25. | explained that she had
committed a criminal offence under the Licensing Act 2003 to sell alcohol to a
minor and told her | would come back with the Police and she would be issued
with a fixed penalty notice of £80. | then spoke to the Designated Premise
supervisor Mr Hasan Seker | told him | would be sending him a letter inviting him
to attend a tape recorded interview. He acted like he was not bothered about the
incident Mr Seker did not say anything. | put to him that he was behind the
counter when the sale took place, and that he did not even notice the volunteers.
He made no comment. By the way he acted during the whole situation | am
convinced he has no intereét in preventing the sale of alcohol to minors. | left a
business card and said | would be in contact shortly. | sealed the two bottles of
wine into evidence bag N00040866. On 20" December 2011 | visited Seker 57-63
London Road Romford accompanied by two Police Officers who issued Mrs Seker
with a fixed penalty notice. /" /
,J%Zo;«
/"

-

Signed :...;.;’.‘.; ....... Savisusessstassaesersasienas
Page 39

v



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix2 - Map of local area

Page 40



Romford and Gidea Park
Rugby Football Club

20to 28

133¥1S N33NO

Seker Express Map Reference: TQ5088SE /,P
2 = Scale @ A4 1:1250 Scale
nlpg:72 E:E WEEsiey™ Date: 22/02/2012 0 10 20 30 40 som
London Borough of Havering

5 © Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
: H ave rl n Town Hall, Main Road 100024327

q Romford, RM1 3BD

LONDON BOROUGH

Tel: 01708 434343 Page 41




London Rd/A118 - Google Maps

Google

Page 1 of 1

Seker Express Supermarket Quality Food Centre

gty ¢ e

-
Buxidha
rt % gl % Y Lo“noe Romford Q
%, e General Market
'?o, Churchil % Secrets
House e 9. House
Eden &
el Cov ® College ¥ e Bull oo dcant t
Stanton M Hotel R
Gate Awney 5 Chambers
_ Faiview = & Havering
Mitdmg,, Ry Parade | & Morgans ™ Museum
Wy 59‘2 " 5 Bhis Amber Count
ambndpe m
‘-‘? < Cottons  Cpurt g Brewery Los::
& Parkview Wd:lnw % Crust I 5 Walk
3 Lod Lotge :
'-'LQ dge ; 5. Logan Court Sleward
pars® 2 T & £ Walk
Cotlons Pe - &
Park Oak House ‘% a {"!?H“ <
@
% = ‘%{l’ﬂa
o
'i} pJ Vue . * ‘}%
Romford @
Rgcraamm 0&% w
ns of Q Linuid
3 Qutback s
Omega Heybridge ol Lia ‘g W Sieakhouse & Envy
Court Court The Sin 4 . : Romford
Dean Court yAAAB Vrity House & % Savacentre Rail
an Court __dan Rd of 2 - Romford
€rs Arms ¥ o Orell Hou St Andrews 3’-4,,% g 1‘&3@‘ Railweay Stat
¢ [Ellfnise Reclory LT @ e e Romford
' % Old Mil 2 5  Arcade
n Place & s & Prinee Albert %fa s
g aes®
= B é,g pudem )
- & 2 7,
‘Z% (3] A -
% Pl B qst
Rd e :
2 M‘d & T
et Rallway <
Sidings %["(\ Briish Telent
Coope Cowt %,  Exchange
\M"’U“ﬁd Hunt Court
Ambulance
Wison Court Stafion o‘d
A1261 0
x o RrY S Homebase
3 o
Romford Gas s d"bd\ "
Works & Depot 5 “WP2012 Google -
Page 42

http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?f=d&source=s d&saddr=London+Rd%2FA118&daddr=...

22/02/2012



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix3 - Representations

Page 43



METROPOLITAN Working together for a safer London

POLICE

PC 118 KD David Fern

Licensing Authority Romford Police Station
London Borough Havering 19 Main Road
Mercury House, Mercury Gardens Romford,
Romford Essex
RM1 3SL RM1 3BJ
Telephone: 01708 432781
Email:
David-

anthony.fern@met.police.uk
Date: 7th February 2012

Police wish to make representation to support the suspension of the premises
licence held by SEKER EXPRESS Supermarket guality food centre, 57 -65
LONDON ROAD, RM7.

The local community in the area suffers from various Anti Social behaviour
incidents. Cottons Parks and the tunnel at the end of Cotleigh road RM7 are just
two areas of concern. These areas suffer from criminal damage, littering and
youths loitering which creates an intimidating environment, along with subjects
drinking alcohol and disregarding the cans and bottles.

e Alcohol fuelled teenagers drinking in the park are of a public nuisance this
could be by the sheer volume of the group.

o Other aspects are the general behaviour, including lack of concern or
respect for others.

e There inhibitions are often lowered with the effects of alcohol which in
turns creates further disorder.

There is no direct evidence to suggest that SEKER is supplying alcohol to the all
subjects in the park who area involved in anti Social behaviour; however the
premises are within a close proximity. There is equally no evidence to suggest
they are not.

Police do have powers to remove alcohol from young persons and to confiscate
it. | would like to ask the committee to seek a further condition on the licence
which will involve the labelling of all alcohol so this can be trace back to the shop.

Page 44



e The label should have the store name on it along with the post code. This
in turns assists police in dealing with matters involving youths drinking at
various locations nearby. It would trace the source of the supplier and help
prevent disorder.

The licensing objectives are all around prevention, the point of sale is essential in
order to promote all of the objectives.

Irresponsible sales by these premises effects social health and public health
many victims of crime when asked in the British crime survey believed the
offender was under the influence of alcohol. The town centre which is within
close walking distance is one of the highest alcohol fuelled boroughs in the
Metropolitan police.

The premises should be aware that selling alcohol to under 18’s or to adults to
supply to teenagers is a criminal offence and is socially unacceptable.

| fully support the suspension of this licence and believe that the operator is not
promoting the licensing objectives.

If I can be of any further assistance in this matter please do not hesitate to
contact me in the licensing office.

Yours sincerely,

PC David Fern
Metropolitan police - Havering
Licensing officer

Page 45



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix5 -  Representations considered invalid
(Content)

Page 46



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix6 - Representations considered invalid
(Arrived at the licensing office after the
consultation period)

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



	Agenda
	4 REPORT OF THE CLERK
	5 REPORT OF THE LICENSING OFFICER
	app and reps


